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APPENDIX
NOTICE OF VIOLATION

OMH Medical Center, Inc. Docket No. 030-10552
dba Okmuigee Memorial Hospital License No. 35-16189-01
Okmulgee, Oklahoma 74447

During an NRC inspection conducted on March 22, 1993, violations of NRC
requirements were identified. In accordance with the "General Statement of
Policy and Procedure for NRC Enforcement Actions," 10 CFR Part 2, Appendix C,
the violations are listed below:

A. 10 CFR 35.60(c) requires, in part, that a licensee require each
individual to use a syringe radiation shield when administering a
radiopharmaceutical by injection, unless the use of the shield is
contraindicated for that patient.

Contrary to the above, on several occasions between March 19, 1991, and
March 22, 1993, when administering radiopharmaceuticals by injection, the
licensee’s chief nuclear medicine technologist did not use a syringe
radiation shield for syringes that contained technetium-99m, and the use
of the shield was not contraindicated for these patients.

This is a Severity Level IV viclation (Supplement VI).

B. 10 CFR 35.70(a) requires that a licensee survey with a radiation
detection survey instrument at the end of each day of use all areas
where radiopharmaceuticals are routinely prepared for use or
administered.

Contrary to the above, on several occasions from March 19, 1991, until
March 22, 1993, *he licensee did not survey with a radiation detection
survey instrument at the end of the day the diagnostic imaging room where
radiopharmaceuticals were routinely administered. For example, no such
survey was performed on January 6, February 11, March 17, April 17,

May 20, June B, July 30, August 24, September 23, October 13,

November 16, and December 18, 1992.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Supplement VI).

Pursuant to the provisions of 10 CFR 2.20i, OMH Medical Center, Inc.,

dba Okmulgee Memcrial Hospital is hereby reguired to submit a written
statement or explanation to the Regional Administrator, Region IV, with a copy
to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTIN: Document Control Desk,
Washington, D.C, 20555, within 30 days of the date of the letter transmitting
this Notice of Violation (Notice). This reply should be clearly marked as a
“Reply to a Notice of Violation" and should include for each violation:

(1) the reason for the violation, or, if contested, the basis for disputing
the violation, (2) the corrective steps that have been taken and the results
achieved, (3) the corrective steps that will be taken to avoid further
violations, and {4) the date when full compliance will be achieved. If an
adequate reply is not received within the time specified in this Notice, an
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order or demand for information may be issued as to why the license should not
be modified, suspended, or revoksd, or why such other action as may be proper
should not be taken. Where good cause is shown, consideration will be given
to extending the response time.

Dated at Arlington, Texas
this 31stday of March , 1993
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EVENT DPESCRIPTION

The limiting condition for operation in Technical Specification 15.3.7,
"Auxiliary Electrical Systems," states that one EDGC may be inoperable for
a period not exceeding 7 days provided the other diesel generator is
tested daily to ensure operability and the engineered safety features
associated with this diesel generator zre operable. On Felruary 15,
1993, EDG G-01 was taken out of service for its annual maintenance
outage. Daily testing of EDG G-02 was being conducted as required by
Technical Specification 15.3.7.

On February 18, 1993, the adaily operability test of EDG G-02 commenced at
about 0800 hours. The instructions being used to perform this test are
contained in Technical Specification Surveillance Procedure TS-2 "Emer-
gency Diesel Generator G-02 Biweekly." The purpose of this test is to
assess the operational readiness of Emergency Diesel Generator G-02 as
required by Technical Specifications. The basic method used in the test
to demonstrate operability is to start and load EDG G-02. The test was
being performed by one operator in the control room in coordination with
one operator in the EDG G-02 room.

At woout the same time as the operability test of EDG G-02, other
operations, engineering, and maintenance personnel began control and
indication circuitry functi- .al testing of EDG G-01. This functinnal

| testing was being performed while EDG G-01 was still out of service

to verify the operability of the EDG G 01 control and output breaker
circuitry after the wiring verificatior .hat was performed on

February 15, 16, and 17. The wiring verification is part of our
continuing effort to verify the accuracy of drawings for PBNP. The
instructions being used to perform this test are contained in Special
Maintenance Procedure SMP-1133-2, "Post As-Built Testing of EDG G-01
Controls and Output Breakers’ Circuits Following Wire Tracing in C-02.%
The functional testing of EDG G-01 circuitry was being performed by one
operator in the control room in coordination with one maintenance
electrician and one engineer in the EDG G-01 room.

At about 0840 hours, the operator in the control room performing the
actions for EDG &-01 control and indication circuitry functional testing
turned on the .ynchroscope switch for the EDG G-01 output breaker to

Unit 1. At about 0841 hours, the operator in the control room performing
the actions for the EDG G-02 operability test came to a point in the
procedure to turn on the synchroscope switch for the EDG G-02 output
breaker to Unit 2. There is one synchroscope on Control Board C-02 that
is used for all the switching operations for the 13.8 and 4 KV electrical
systems. This synchroscope on C-02 can only be used for one synchro-
nizing operation at a time.
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The control switches that are used to turr on the synchroscope for a
breaker normally have the handle removed. A singl.: handle is at the
front of the Contrcl Board C-02. The handle is locked into tL synchro-
scope control switch when the handle is placed in the synchroscope
control switch and turned to the “on" position. The locking-in of the
control switch handle is the main method for preventing twc or more
synchroscope control switches on C-02 from being turned on simul-
taneously.

The operator performing the operability test of EDG G-02 recognized that
the C-02 synchroscope control switch handle was being used by the opera-
tor performing the EDG G-01 functional testing and asked when the C-02
synchroscope control switch handle would be available. The Unit 1 con-
trol operator overheard e guestion, took a control switch handle from
the C-01 control board, and handed it to the operator performing the EDG
G-01 functional testing. The operator performing the EDG G-01 functional
testing handed the contrel switch handle to the operator performing the
EDG G-02 operability test. The operator performing the EDG G-02
operability test inserted the synchroscope switch handle and turned the
synchroscope switch on. This connected the two synchroscope input
circuits, which caused a higher than normal current in the EDG G-02
metering circuitry. This caused a fuse to blow in the EDG G-02 metering
circuitry. EDG G-02 was declared inoperable.

As stated previously, EDG G-01 had been taken out of service for its
annual maintenance outage on February 15, 1993. Therefore, both Emer-
gency Diesel Generators G-01 and G-02 were considered to be inoperable,

a condition prohlbxted by Technical Specifications. Technical Specifi-
cation 15.3.0, “"General Considerations" section of Technical Specifica-
tion of 15.3 "Limiting Conditions for Operation," was entered. Technical
Specification 15.3.0 requires that the affected units be placed in hot
shutdown within 2 hours and in cold shutdown within 48 hours if the
condition is not corrected.

The blown fuse was replaced and EDG G-02 was declared operable at

0953 hours. The EDG G-02 daily operability test was successfully
completed at 1138 hours. The EDG G-01 maintenance outage continued.
Technical Specification 15.3.7 that states one diesel may be inoperable
for 7 days remained in effect for the inoperability of EDG G-01.

Both units remained at full power before, during, and following this
event. The engineered safety features associated with both diesel
generators remained operable during this event.

WRC Form 3864 (5.5
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A human performance evaluation was performed to determine the causes and
contributing factors for this event. It has been concluded this event
was caused by a personnel error and procedural deficiencies.

Personnel failed to recognize that turning the second synchroscope switch
to the on position would cause this problem. The functional testing of
EDG G-01 was being performed using a special maintenance procedure.
EDG G-01 was out of service, eguipment isolation tags were in use and
visible to the operators. Personnel involved in this event believed that
the functional testing of EDG G-01 was being performed in a condition

. that would prevent this problem.

The procedural deficiencies include lack of a caution in the EDG G-01
functional test procedure (SMP-1123-2) that would have warned the
operator that this situation could occur during the circuitry functional
testing. Also, the procedure did not provide directions to the operator
in the control room to verify actions with resulting indications. Direc-
tions for the operator to check the synchroscope and metering indications
would have helped the operator recognize that the synchroscope and meter-
ing circuitry was being energized by this action.

COMPONENT AND SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

The synchronizing circuitry is used to verify that the frequency, phase,
and voltage on each side of breaker are sufficiently compatible to allow
the breaker to be closed. The fuse that blew during this event was in
the circuitry that provides the inputs to the synchroscope from the out-
put of EDG G-02. The synchronizing circuitry is used to connect an
operating EDG to a bus that is energized from another source. It is not
used to connect an EDG to a de-energized bus. This circuitry also
provides indication for EDG G-02 electrical output (voltage, current,
VARS, kilowatts, and frequency).

The IEEE Standard 803A-1983 component identifiers for this report are:

Emergency Diesel Generators DG

Synchronizing Circuitry 25

Synchroscope SYN

Synchroscope Hand Switch HS

Fuse FU
REPORTABILITY

This Licensee Event Report is provided pursuant to the reguirements of
10 CFR 50.73(a)(2) (i) (B}, "Any operation or condition prohibited by the
plant’s Technical Specifications."
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SAFETY ASSESSMENT

During this event, EDG G-01 was out of service for a maintenance outage.
A fuse blew in the metering circuitry for EDG G-02 due to personnel error
and procedure deficiencies. This blown fuse would not prevent EDG G-02
from automatically startine and loading. However, the controi for EDG
G-02 was maintained in exercise mode during the trouble shooting of the
blown fuse, which disables the automatic starting capability. EDG G-02
was still capable of starting and providing electrical power to the
emergency buses by operator action. The blown fuse only aJfected the
ability to synchronize the EDG to a bus already energized from another
source and the metering of load current, frequency, and veltage. The
lack of metering capability would make it more difficult for the opeiator
to monitor the EDG performance during an emergency.

CORRECTIVE ACTIONS

The immediate corrective action was to trouble shoot and replace the
blown fuse in the metering circuit,

The causes of this event include: personnel involved failed to recognize
that turning the second synchroscope switch to the on position would
cause this problem and procedural deficiencies.

Corrective actions for this event include:

- Review the Maintenance Procedure Writers’ Guides for inclusion of
pre-job briefing, delineation of responsibilities, and operator
verification of changing indications, and revise these guides as
necessary.

- Revise the Operations Instruction 0I-35 "Llectrical Eguipment
Operation" toc include a caution against turning two or more
synchroscope switches on at the same time.

- Evaluate the need for training on this event.

- Communicate to the operators the importance of checking indications
prior to switching operations.

- Review the equ'pment isolation tag-out being used for the emergency
diesel generators annual maintenance for inclusion of isolation of
the synchronizing circuitry.

All corrective actions are expected to be completed by September 1993.
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EIMILAR OCCURRENCES

EDG was out of service and electrical system operational errors that
affected both tiains of Engineered Safety Features include:

Unit 1

Other Licensee Event Reports that describe events that occurred while one

LER 88-010 Electrical System Misalignment

jnit

LER 80-006 Defeat Containment Spray Actuation during Surveillance
LER 80-007 Loss of RHR Redundancy During Surveillance




